DBoard of Commissionens

P.O. Box 1498 @ Raton, New Mexico 87740
Ph. (575) 445-9661 @ Fax. (575) 445-2902
www.co.colfax.nm.us

Notice
County Commissioners Budget WOPkShOp
Chairan PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Colfax County Board of
g"o;")"ﬁ’l‘\%:;;“ Commissioners will hold a Budget Workshop on Tuesday April 23, 2024, at
8:00 am, located in the Commission Chambers at the Colfax County

o e Building 230 North Third Street, 3 Floor, Raton, NM to discuss the Budget
Raton, NM 87740 for 2024-2025.

505-617-6895

pretE. Wier Done this 16" day of April 2024

P.O. Box 664

Angel Fire, NM 87710
(505) 652-0039

Monte K. Gore Colfax
County Manager

230 North 3rd Street
Raton, NM 87740
(575) 445-9661

Elected Officials

Lydia M. Garcia
County Treasurer
(575) 445-3171

Kristi E. Graham
County Assessor
(575) 445-2314

Royal Quint
Probate Judge
(575) 445-9565




DB oard of Commissioners

P.O. Box 1498 @ Raton, New Mexico 87740
Ph. (575) 445-9661 @ Fax. (575) 445-2902
www.co.colfax.nm.us

REGULAR MEETING
April 23, 2024
County Commissioners AGENDA
(S:ih I:rl:il;l: PUBLI.C NOTICE IS HEI_{EBY GIVEN t_hat the Colfax Count.y Board of
Raton, NM 87740 Commissioners will meet in Regular Session on Tuesday, April 23, 2024, at
(505) 617-6893 9:00 A.M., in the Commission Chambers, 3rd Floor at the Colfax County
W Building, Raton, NM for the following:
Vice Chairman
?ﬁf&'li_;‘g 9’;7740 This agenda can be viewed at the Colfax County Website at www.co.colfax.nm.us
Bret E. Wier 1. Call to Order
Member .
P.O. Box 664 2. Pledge of Allegiance
z;‘:g;";;i{_ f"g;’ . 3. Salute to the New Mexico Flag
Mot K. Gore 4. Approve Agenda
g:}r:z gzu;:::; sl:/lrzgrger 5. Approve Budget Hearing Meeting Minutes, Puplic Hearing Meeting
Raton, NM 87740 Minutes and Regular Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024
(575) 445-9661 6. Recognize Visitors
7. Public Comment
Elected Officials 8. Discuss/Approve-Indigent Care Claim
9. Discuss/Action — Angel Fire Airport, Mayor of Angel Fire, BJ Lindsey
aﬂ':“MTr‘z:srmr 10. Discuss/Action — Proclamation, National Mental Awareness Month 2024
(575) 445-3171 11. Discuss/Action — Promotional Funding Request, Six Pack Outdoors,
Kristi E. Graham Charcoal Burner
(‘;‘;‘;')‘24;‘_‘2‘;1‘;” 12. Discuss/Action — Promotional Funding Request, Chase Ranch Foundation,
Open House
Royal Quint 13. Discuss/Action — Property Use & Liability Insurance Agreement Between
f5'7°5';”4‘§5’_';§§§ Colfax County and Raton Mainstreet, International Santa Fe Trail Balloon
Rally
14. Discuss/Action — Approve/Ratify Aviation Grant Agreement Between NM
Department of Transportation-Aviation Division and AXX-Angel Fire-
Colfax County Project AXX-24-03
15. Discuss/Action — Colfax County Investment Policy
16. Discuss/Action — Colfax County Building Tenant Notification Policy
17. Discuss/Action — Contractor’s Application for Payment, Chicorica Creek
Low Water Crossing, Rocky Road Gravel & Well Drilling LLC
18. Discuss/Action — State of New Mexico Audit Contract, Patillo, Brown &

Hill LLP



P.O. Box 1498 @ Raton, New Mexico 87740
Ph. (575) 445-9661 @ Fax. (575) 445-2902
www.co.colfax.nm.us

19. Discuss/ Action —-Memorandum of Understanding Between Colfax County

County Commissioners )
and City of Raton, Infant Surrender Boxes

(S;L:,r,':ﬂ': 20. Discuss/ Action -Memorandum of Understanding Between Colfax County
g«:):')n(,ﬁ]l\;sfgﬂﬂ and Village of Angel Fire, Infant Surrender Boxes

o 21. Discuss -Quarterly Department Updates, Road Department, Elected
Mary Lou Kern Officials
Vice Chairman
Raton, NM 87740 22. Managers’ Docket
505-617-6895 .

23. Commissioners’ Docket

Bret E. Wier -
N 24. Adjourn
P.O. Box 664
Angel Fire, NM 87710 . ,

oy Done this 16™ day of April 2024

(505) 652-0039

Monte K. Gore

Colfax County Manager
230 North 3rd Street . .
Raton, NM 87740 Salute to the New Mexico Flag — “I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and

(575) 445-9661 the Zia Symbol of perfect friendship among united cultures”.
Elected Officials

Lydia M. Garcia
County Treasurer
(575) 445-3171

Kristi E. Graham
County Assessor
(575) 445-2314

Royal Quint
Probate Judge
(575) 445-9565




Colfax County

A Proclamation on National Mental Awareness Month, 2024

This measure would recognize May 2024 as Mental Health Matters Month in Colfax County to enhance public
awareness of mental health and dispel the stigma surrounding it.

WHEREAS Half of the population will experience some type of mental health challenge over the course of a
lifetime; and

Whereas Mental health challenges are one of the most common health conditions in New Mexico, affecting one
out of six adults and impacting both the person experiencing mental health challenges and those persons who
care and love the person facing the challenge; and

Whereas one out of every twenty-four Americans with a serious mentalillness have difficulty functioningin
everyday life and is left untreated, have life expectancies 25 years shorter than the general population; and

Whereas every day, millions of people face stigma related to mental health and may feel isolated and alone, going
years before receiving any help; and

Whereas Recovery can and does happen, and all Colfax County should know that support and help is available
regardless of any individual’s situation; and

Whereas creating a community where everyone feels comfortable reaching out for the support and helpis
available regardless of any individuals’ situation; and

Whereas access to support and ending stigma is of paramount importance; and
Whereas the Board of Commissioners of Colfax County looks to enhance public awareness of mental health now.
Therefore, be it Resolved by Colfax County therefore concurring, that the Board of County Commissioners hereby

recognizes May 2024 as Mental Health Matters Month in Colfax County to enhance public awareness of mental
health to help end the stigma.

Approved in open meeting this 23" day of April 2024

COLFAX COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Si Trujillo, CHAIRMAN

Mary Lou Kern, VICE-CHAIR

Bret Wier, MEMBER
ATTEST:

Rayetta M. Trujillo, CLERK OF THE BOARD




APPLICATION FOR REQUESTING FUNDING FOR ADVERTISING, PUBLICIZING, AND
PROMOTING TOURIST-RELATED FACILITES, ATTRACTION, AND TOURIST-RELATED
EVENTS

1. Narrative:
(Provide a complete description of how the tourist-related facility, attraction, or event and
how the requested funding amount will bring people into the County.)

Vermejo Park Ranch andSix Pack Outdoors will be hosting the second annual Charcoal
Burner Race on May 18th. The race will include a 41 mile, 64 mile, and 97 mile gravel bike
race and a 13.1 mile half marathon. The event will be hosted near the old townsite of
Catskill, NM and one of the two remaining sets of charcoal ovens left standing in New
Mexico, hence the name. Last year the race drew about 100 participants and this year we
are hoping to double the number of racers at the event. As of March 3 we already have 90
participants from New Mexico, Colorado, Texas, Oklahoma, Florida, California and Montana.

2. List the objective for your tourist-related facility, attraction, or event.

The objective of the Charcoal Burner is to showcase the amazing gravel bicycling and
adventure running opportunities in Colfax County. From mountain biking at Angel Fire to
gravel riding on the high plains of eastern Colfax County, to adventure running and
riding opportunities at Sugarite State Park our County has some amazing areas to ride
and run. Vermejo has partnered with many local partners to not only highlight Vermejo
but hopefully all of Colfax County. Our partners already include The Blue Dragonfly
Brewery, Moss Adventures, The Raton Pass Inn, 111 Park, Colfax Craft Bar, Bruno’s
Pizza, Ultimate Sports, Topar Welding, Trinidad True Outdoors, and FiTaas. All of our
partner /sponsors have offered either direct support for the race, prize donations and/or

financial support.




3. Describe how the tourist-related facility, attraction, or event promotes Colfax

County as a destination which resuits in overnight stays that include other
revenue generating activities in the community.

One of the goals for starting the Charcoal Burner was to engage and support local
businesses. Prizes were mostly in the form of gift certificates from local businesses
to encourage participants to support our local economy. For example: 111 Park,
Coifax Craft Bar, and Brunos Pizza offer gift certificates for podium finishers, the
Raton Pass Inn offers reduced rate lodging for participants, and Vermejo also offers
lodging packages. Blue Dragon Fly Brewery and Moss Adventures will be at the

event providing support.

. Describe how the tourist-related facility, attraction, or event enhances future
promotion of the County as a destination.

By showcasing Colifax County as a destination for gravel cycling and adventure
running we hope to make our area a destination for cyclists and runners. The
annual Charcoal Burner can be one of a series of events that bring people to our
area. A guide highlighting potential rides for and runs for visitors to our area would
be a great opportunity. If we can work to have an Colfax County Adventure Guide
we would be glad to make sure all of the Charcoal Burner participants got a copy. A
calendar of local events would also be something we could showcase at the event.

. List any partners who will provide funding for your tourist-related facility,
attraction, or event.

Partner Name Partner Contribution
A Six Pack Outdqors $ 6,356 direct and in-kind B
Ultimate SE)orts B s 2,500 direct and in-kind
|} Blue Dragonﬂ! Breweq_ $ 1,0003—}}2{{22@
!L Topar Welding '$ 600 in-kind su;z?ort ___1

. Provide a detail cost breakdown for the cost of the tourist-related facility,

attraction, or event.
(Attach a copy of budget, pro-forma, or other financial information)

G’U5 HD(M _/Qﬂ,ae_ Wd g

Printed Name Signature




Pre-Facility, Attraction, or Event Form 1

CONTACT AND FACILITY, ATTRACTION, OR EVENT INFORMATION

(Turned in with the application 45 days prior to event)

Contact Information

Organization Name (As listed on W9)

Six Pack Outdoors

Facility, Attraction, or Event Name

Charcoal Burner
Vermejo Park Ranch

Event Date(s)

May 18, 2024

Facility, Attraction, or Event Organizer
Name & Title within Organization

Geoff Hall - Board of Directors - Six Park Outdoors
Gus Holm - General Manager - Vermejo Park

Ranch

Phone Number of Organizer

Geoff Hall - 806.676.9741
Gus Holm - 575.447.1145

Email of Organizer

Geoff Hall - goof@sixpackoutdoors.org
Gus Holm - gus.holm@vermejo.com

Facility, Attraction, or Event
Location(s)

Charcoal Burner - The Start - Finish will be on
Vermejo Park Ranch at the Lower Charcoal Ovens

23 miles west of Raton Hwy 555

Expected Results

Number of participants at your facility,
attraction, or event (excluding
volunteers and staff)

The goal for the 2024 Charcoal Burner is 200
participants, as of March 1 there are 89
participants for the race.

Number of volunteers/staffs at your
facility, attraction, or event

The event will have 12-16 volunteers and staff at
the event.

Specify OTHER revenue sources expected to be contracted

Name of
Business/Organization Amount Awarded Date Funding Awarded
Trinidad True $400.00 January 8, 2024




Pre-Facility, Attraction, or Event Form 2

ADVERTISING/MARKETING/PROMOTIONAL PLAN AND BUDGET
Turned in with the application 45 days prior to event

Fill out the chart with your advertising plan and the estimated cost for these ads. We
recommend you contact the agencies in advance to get advertising quotes to assist with your

budget.

Advertising/Promotion Type of Date of Ad
Company/Provider Ad/Promotion Publication or Item Cost
Purchased
Example: KRTN Radio Station Satellite Internet/Radio April 15-22, 2021 $45.00
Advertisement
Example: The World Journal Newspaper Advertisement April 10-24 $60.00
Newspaper Promotion
Lemon Drop Shop Promotional Tee Shirts May 4, 2024 $2,625

Note: Sandi Lemons hasn't been able to provide me

with a firm quote, so this is zfn estimate.

Estimate is $17.50 per shirt{for 150 shirts = $2,625

Total Pro'Iected Cost of Marketini:

4




2024 Vermejo Charcoal Burner
Event Date - May 18, 2024

DRAFT Financial Summary - Includes Estimates and Projections

Revenue
Registrations Fee Qty Total
99 Mile Gravel $70 30 $2,100
66 Mile Gravel $60 40 $2,400
41 Mile Gravel $50 40 $2,000
1/2 Marathon $45 30 $1,350
TOTAL 140 $7,850
Trinidad True Donation $400
Ultimate Sports - Sponsorship $1,500
TOTAL INCOME $9,750
Expenses
Six Pack Outdoors
Marketing $280 8 Hours
Race Preperation and Administation $1,400 40 Hours
Travel $676 (1300 mi. at $0.52/mi.)
Race Support Staff at Race (n=3) $2,100 60 Hours
Banners, medals and Supplies for the Race $400
Prize purse (half sponsored by Ulitmate Sports) $1,500
Sub-Total $6,356
Vermejo Park Ranch
Meals for Participants $1,824 (152 Meals @ $12/meal)
Shirts for Race Crew $240 (12 @ $20/shirt)
Porta Potties $600 (Trinidad Pumping - Estimate)
Race Preperation and Administation $1,050 30 Hours
Race Support Staff at Race (n=5) $1,820 52 Hours
Marketing $280 8 Hours
Sub-Total $5,814
EXPENSE TOTAL $12,170
Profit/Loss -$2,420

Hourly Rate $35




Colfax County

ELGIBILITY
» Only tourist-related facilities, attractions, and tourist-related events occurring in
the unincorporated portion of the County are eligible for County Lodger Tax funds
and as per Colfax County Ordinance NO. 2019-02 (Amended) Section 5 (A).

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS
o Any questions about the Application should be addressed to the County Manager
by phone at (575) 445-9661 or the Lodger’s Tax Clerk.

o All Lodgers Tax requests must be in the format as shown in this application.
Failure to complete the application in its entirety will automatically disqualify the
request. :

e The original Application must be submitted to the County Manger’s Office, P.O.
Box 1498, Raton, New Mexico 87740.

o Application will be reviewed at the Regular Meeting of the Lodgers Tax Advisory
Committee. Application must be present at the meeting for their application to be
considered at the meeting and the Lodger’s Tax Funding Guide must be signed
and dated by all Applicants.

N . (O . ;uy \ " ( YO Y7 AL
(V\'_\(;\Y‘L_(:CA/\ ‘.Jk‘\“ ney - _AX TG \L = k“lcc 5

For Lodggr’s Tax Advisory Board Use Only

i

‘ PRIORITY # " \ |

 AMOUNT TOBERECOMMENDED | o0
H] [ el

| TO COUNTY COMMISSION } s 9095-

w/fosition L
Line O\ N 95,\0 '
( \\

/ M O

sTox Clerk

n

"4{8 fzozq




Colfax County

APPLICATION FOR REQUESTING FUNDING FOR ADVERTISING, PUBLICIZING, AND
PROMOTING TOURIST-RELATED FACILITES, ATTRACTION, AND TOURIST-RELATED
EVENTS

1. Narrative:
(Provide a complete description of how the tourist-related facility, attraction, or event and
how the requested funding amount will bring people into the County.)

Tleome St adfaehesl @@@M OnRUeY”
quastiony \=,

2. List the objective for your tourist-related facility, attraction, or event.




v

Lodgers’ Tax Application
February 26, 2024

1. Narrative

The Chase Ranch is an eleven-thousand-acre historic ranch property located
adjacent to the Village of Cimarron, New Mexico, in Colfax County. It was begun
by Manly and Theresa Chase when they bought one thousand acres of land from
legendary land baron, Lucien Maxwell, in 1869. The Chase Ranch Foundation was
formed following the death of the last Chase family member, Gretchen Sammis, in
2012. In her will, Ms. Sammis asked that her family property remain a working
cattle ranch and that it be a site where young people could learn all about ranéhing,
leading to a continuation of the great tradition of Western Ranching,.

The Chase Ranch Foundation will be hosting an Open House at the Chase Main
House on July 3-5, 2024. The Chase House, an adobe structure over 150 years old,
has been updated recently with all of the family antiques in their original places.
The home is as beautiful as any museum and the Board of Directors of the Chase
Foundation would like to share this gem with Colfax County’s residents and
visitors, and beyond. There will be guided walking tours of the Chase House, its
gardens and grounds. The original barn, its corrals and its tack room filled with

old saddles will also be seen. ' '

The Foundation is requesting $ .00 to cover the costs of advertising and
educational materials for this event. - '

Cimarron and the surrounding ranches have colorful histories that have formal
mention on the National Register of Historic Places. The Chase Ranch family
history travels hand-in-glove with that same history. The United States is a nation
of intelligent, inquisitive people and the opportunity to hear and see the rich history
of the Chase Ranch will contribute to a rewarding visit to Cimarron and Colfax

County.

A team of well-trained tour guides will teach guests the ever-energetic history of
the area and they will encourage visits to the restaurants, lodgings, other museuins
and other points of interest in northern New Mexico. A visit to the Chase Ranch'
will be a rich experience in New Mexico’s history and will whet everyone’s
appetite to see and do all that Colfax County and the great state of New Mexico

have to offer. |




2. Objective

Now that the Chase House has undergone a significant upgrade, the objective of
this Open House is to re-introduce the Chase Ranch to the local and broader New
Mexico community. This objective is fed by the fact that the Chase Ranch
Foundation has an historical and moral obligation to fulfill the wishes of Gretchen
Sammis per ranching and teaching the fine art of Western Ranching.

3. Promoting Colfax County

The Chase Ranch Open House will occur July 3-5 which is, of course, before,
during and after the Fourth of July rodeo celebrations in Cimarron and northern
New Mexico. Food and lodging will be required for the many visitors who come to
the annual rodeo and the Chase Ranch Foundation hopes that the Open House
event will contribute to the holiday festivities and encourage visitors to stay an
extra night or two in Colfax County. Tour Guides at the Chase Ranch will promote
additional activities in the area such as hiking, the shooting sports, “museum
hopping”, horseback riding, wagon and trail riding.

4. Future Promotion of Colfax County .

The Chase Ranch is located in a beautiful valley and offers unforgettable sights.
Visitors who live in the more confined spaces of cities and suburbs love this open
country, the mountain air and the feeling of freedom that it offers. This area is a
magnet for folks who want new adventures and new knowledge. The Chase Ranch
Open House will be yet another venue that offers fun and renewal of the spirit.
Colfax County is already a popular place for skiing and hiking but the little slice of
heaven that is the Chase Ranch will offer yet another place to visit and re-visit as

guests visit the richness of Colfax County. '

The Chase Ranch Open House is designed as a way of re-introducing the Chase
Ranch to the residents and visitors of Colfax County and northern New Mexico.
The Chase Ranch Foundation will offer more and more events and services to
Colfax County as time moves along. With a dedication to the land and western




way of life, as led by the Chase F amily, the Chase Ranch will grow as a place to
visit and learn from time and time again.



3. Describe how the tourist-related facility, attraction, or event promotes Colfax
County as a destination which results in overnight stays that include other
revenue generating activities in the community.

4. Describe how the tourist-reiated facility, attraction, or event enhances future
promotion of the County as a destination.

5. List any partners who will provide funding for your tourist-related facility,
attraction, or event.

Partner Name Partner Contribution
T~
Deloren Cosder $ ORCAVIER. OF REFREWENSS
_ T Gd
TeAan ITZRERCES § Bavet. of QoS
TonD FLOWER s NEGEThR
B GevenEeS § LARE+ EDURATON
W " T-Yaad sl &
Wanoaze Dand § EATERTPINMENT
m.\qw HQ}' BDIE OO AREARIY
Newet Reewd g v Gu\ne

6. Provide a detail cost breakdown for the cost of the tourist-related facility,

attraction, or event.
(Attach a copy of budget, pro-forma, or other financial information)

Printed Name Signature



' Pre-Facmty Attraction, or Event Form 1

“.. Organization Inforimation.

CONTACT AND FACILITY, ATTRACTION, OR EVENT INFORMATION

Turned in with the a

Contact Information

lication 45 days prior to event

Organization Name (As listed on W9)

Facility, Attraction, or Event Name

Event Date(s)

Facility, Attraction, or Event Organizer
Name & Title within Organization

Phone Number of Organizer

Email of Organizer

Facility, Attraction, or Event
Location(s)

Expected Results

attraction, or evant (excluding
volunteers and staff)

Number of participants at your facility,

facility, attraction, or event

Number of volunteers/staffs at your

Specify OTHER revenue sources expected to be contracted

s T et Reawoed -1

Name of
Business/Organization Amount Awarded Date Funding Awarded
Fant. SeourRenet ~ kapn Lose Pee SHFEPAY ScENE Pppy R 2024
AR QU SDOLE =l i@t)fl

Rt T Seeor Baat -

AFEPal Sodepl . “lond 5, 20004

CROMBRTS ED\AQMQQ/M&V




Pre-Facility, Attraction, or Event Fom1

e o

CONTACT AND FACILITY, ATTRACT| ION, OR EVENT INFORMATION
(Turned in with the application 45 days prior to event)
Contact Information

Organization Name (As listed on W) | CPSC Rantu EQ SOATION
Facilly, Atiraction, or EventName | ™ (e 0 it O Hoosg®
Event Data(s) e oy 5 Q,OQ,‘-[
. Ceac Hareymald
Facility, Attraction, or Event Organizer
Name & Title within Organization g*@& ;@;\g{*\ FooDAToD
ERE”
Phone Number of Organizer \-F 19~ L' 29 - 020l
Emall of Organizer eraig hastirnen o \\@Smo‘,\\, Com
Here Rewocd,
Eggl;ittiy, Attraction, or Event %Z}{S SSVNT@%QD mq
- Qrareon, .. 8771
Expected Results
Number of participants at your facility,
tiraction, ent (excluding -
o 75-200
Number of volunteers/staffs at your (8
facility, attraction, or event

Specify OTHER revenue sources expected to be contracted

Name of
Business/Organization Amount Awarded Date Funding Awarded

X

4




- Pr e-Facility, Atiraction, or Event Form 2_

- BUDGET REPORT

ADVERTISING/MARKETING/PROMOTIONAL PLAN AND BUDGET

Turned in with the a

lication 45 days prior to event

Fill out the chart with your advertising plan and the estimated cost for these ads. We
recommend you contact the agencies in advance to get advertising quotes to assist with your

budget.
Advertising/Promotion Type of Date of Ad
Company/Provider Ad/Promotion Publication or ltem Cost
Purchased
Example: KRTN Radio Station Satellite intemet/Radio April 15-22, 2021 $45.00
Advertisement
Example: The World Journal Newspaper Advertisement April 10-24 $60.00
Newspaper Promotion
FRT0 " Remios wsERviews 85D | Med \S- o <1 7\ R.FY
TR TS 2094
Rew S = Honwed a6 | Beew. 30,9004 2 oD
m:&m&o‘%&ﬁ,
TRecon hatirerons | e R Med s a00d]  x92.0D
(Ao)=Chsrrenor. 4 Ressees
Decoriyerts=Oonves. | N Rusr | Beew soac0dl Ao ot
SRR :
mogent Sm-Weweped [ ot Meenee Cuot] e, 2004 S50.CD
M| DRsSER
) REFERS
Yeceeeoy. Dws O Med \X 00

ST

Total Projected Cost of Marketing:

R T e % T e

W PN R e B "‘-’
o e TR T v MR IR ey




Colfax County

ELGIBILITY
* Only tourist-related facilities, attractions, and tourist-related events occurring in
the unincorporated portion of the County are eligible for County Lodger Tax funds
and as per Colfax County Ordinance NO. 2019-02 (Amended) Section 5 (A).

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS
* Any questions about the Application should be addressed to the County Manager
by phone at (575) 445-9661 or the Lodger’s Tax Clerk.

e All Lodgers Tax requests must be in the format as shown in this application.
Failure to complete the application in its entirety will automatically disqualify the
request.

* The original Application must be submitted to the County Manger’s Office, P.O.
Box 1498, Raton, New Mexico 87740.

o Application will be reviewed at the Regular Meeting of the Lodgers Tax Advisory
Committee. Application must be present at the meeting for their application to be
considered at the meeting and the Lodger’s Tax Funding Guide must be signed
and dated by all Applicants.

‘T\’\C Q_\/-\(.‘:’)Q /FC V) 1»‘4(“1 G \1 O\

For Lodger’s Tax Advisory Board Use Only

PRIORITY # # ’

\Z- |

AMOUNT TO BE RECOMMENDED — 7Y [
TO COUNTY COMMISSION | o2 — |

L J ¥ |

T|tIeIPOS|t|on

u\(;\ CU Cv \C)b A g "‘/k‘\c\)“» L\Q» h
) L Ci— y S{ZOaL{




A OF THE Cogg,
oVF "Wy,
L -} *s

T
Vi, [ |
RATON

MainStreet

Colfax County

Property Use and Liability Agreement with Colfax County
for the “International Santa Fe Trail Balloon Rally” Activity

This agreement is made between Colfax County, hereinafter referred to as “County”, and Raton
Mainstreet hereinafter referred to as “MainStreet” for its International Santa Fe Trail Balloon Rally
hereinafter referred to as “Balloon Rally”.

In consideration for County allowing the Raton MainStreet the use of La Mesa Airfield for purposes of
launching, retrieving and tethering hot air balloons. Both parties agree upon the following TERMS and
CONDITIONS:

1. Grant of Access and Use: The County hereby grants MainStreet access and use to the identified space
on July 5% — 7%, 2024. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon 10 days notice.
The parties acknowledge that approval of this event by the County is a condition precedent to this
agreement.

2. Care of Property: Raton MainStreet agrees that in exchange for allowing it access to the property, it
agrees and shall, at its own expense and at all times, maintain the property in an excellent and safe
condition. MainStreet shall return said property in the same condition as received, free of all debris and
waste. Furthermore, MainStreet shall be responsible for all clean up and trash removal. Raton
MainStreet shall be responsible for sanitary toilet facilities to accommodate expected crowds.

3. Alterations: Raton MainStreet shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements, in, to or
about the property without the prior written approval of County.

4. Ordinances and Statutes: Raton MainStreet and participants shall comply with all statutes,
ordinances and requirements of all municipal, county, state and federal authorities now in force, or
which may hereafter be in force, pertaining to the properties described herein and the use thereof and
comply with all laws now in effect or hereinafter in effect regarding its activities.

5. Liability; Public and Property Liability Insurance of the Raton MainStreet and County: Any liability of
the Raton MainStreet or its agents, and the liability of the County and its agents incurred in connection
with this Balloon Activity Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort
Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, et seq., as amended. No provision of this Agreement modifies
or waives any provision of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act. Neither party hereto shall be responsible for
liability incurred as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. The
County and MainStreet will have and keep in force at all times during the term of this Agreement its
own public liability insurance, worker's compensation, and property insurance for their respective
activities under this Agreement through the New Mexico Self Insurer Fund or otherwise in accordance
with the provisions and amounts set forth in the attached Exhibit A hereto.



ach? Y THE Cang,,
(3

G
|

. :]-f?m Colfax County
MUY

RAT(

MainStreet

6. Indemnity: Neither party hereto nor its public employees shall seek indemnification or contribution
from the other party hereto.

7 Applicable Law: Any and all disputes between Raton MainStreet and the County arising from the use
of the La Mesa Airfield property for Balloons, including any claims for personal injury or death, will be
governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico and the exclusive jurisdiction thereof will be in the
state or federal courts of the State of New Mexico.

8. No Partnership / Joint Venture by the Parties: This Agreement does not constitute a partnership or
joint venture. Raton MainStreet shall be responsible for any undertaking or activity in planning and
putting on Balloons and MainStreet agrees that it is not an agent, representative, or employee of Colfax
County, and the County agrees that it is not an agent or employee of MainStreet.

9. Independent Contractor: The County and MainStreet agree that any and all performance under this

Agreement will be exercised by it as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of the
other.

In witness whereof, this Agreement has been executed and approved and is effective and operative as
to each of the parties herein provided as of the date of approval by the parties.

&

ﬁaton MainStreet Q N \B\Q\r\\—

Colfax County Representative



N
ACORD
N————

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

RATOMAI-01 JZAK
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

4/1/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Blue Ridge Risk Partners, LLC
1120 C Professional Court

CONTACT i
SENEACT Jennifer Zak

(Wi o, Exty: (301) 670-7382 [AIE, noy:(301) 791-1478

Hagerstown, MD 21740 EMAlL .. Jennifer.Zak@BlueRidgeRiskPartners.com
_INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A: ACE Property & Casualty Ins Co 20699
INSURED INSURER B :
Raton Main Street Organization INSURER C :
145 S. 1st St. INSURER D :
Raton, NM 87740
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSR

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

| OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLU 7
Mandamwﬁm Eifl) BED

If yes, describe under
| DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

R TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL SUBR POLICY NUMBER (OLCYERT | POLSY O LIMITS
A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
CLAIMS-MADE = X  OCCUR X AAPN18981889-001 71412024  7/8/2024 RAMAREIGRENTED o) s
X Airmeet Liability MED EXP (Any one person) S 2,500
X Malpractice Aggre. \ PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | §_ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ‘ GENERAL AGGREGATE  §
PoLICY 5ESF Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 250,009
OTHER: s
A | automoBILE LaBILITY ‘ O Se LT |
ANY AUTO X iAAPN1 8981889-001 71412024 7/8/2024  BoDILY INJURY (Per person)  §
RUTOS oNLY RUTERULED ‘ BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
AR ONLY AONRENEY fﬁ??fgfl.‘ﬂt WinGE $
X Non-owned Aircraft s 1,000,000
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 3
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGéREmTE ' ' s
DED RETENTION § $
g)'xvr?é‘ EMPLOYERS LIABILITY e SR | BT
| ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §
| E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

additional insureds

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Airmeet at La Mesa Airfield, Raton, NM and the facilities in the vicinity thereof in connection and/or relation withfto the airmeet. Certificate holders are

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

County of Colfax, NM
230 North 3rd St.
Raton, NM 87740

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

i T

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

A-1330
Updated:07/2023
Aviation

Project Location

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION !!
Aviation Grant Agreement Form ii
MMDoT

Date Mar 15, 2024

AXX - ANGEL FIRE- COLFAX COUNTY

Sponsor COLFAX, COUNTY OF

Address PO BOX 98
City RATON NM Zip Code 87740
Participation |FAA Funding Breakdown| 90-9-1
Contract No. Project No. AXX-24-03
Vendor No. |0000054380 Expiration Date
Purchase Order No:

1 REVISED 01-2023



DocusSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C
AVIATION GRANT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between the New Mexico Department of Transportation, acting through its Aviation Division
(Department), and the Sponsor. This Agreement is effective pursuant to Section 7, below.

Now Therefore, pursuant to the New Mexico Aviation Act, NMSA 1978, Section 64-1-11 et seq., and the New Mexico
Municipal Airport Law, NMSA 1978 Sections 3-39-1 et seq., the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding, authorized in Section 64-1-13, NMSA 1978, to the Sponsor to assist

in financing an aviation project.

a. Project Description:

AIRFIELD LIGHTING REHAB, BEACON REPLACEMENT, LAND ACQUISITION

b. Site of Development.The site of development is identified on the property map, attached as Exhibit A.
c. Funding.Below is the funding for the Project. The State's contribution is the maximum amount that the Department
will contribute. Attached as Exhibit B is the engineer's cost estimate.

State Sponsor Other Total

$ 82,200 $ 9,133 $ 821,984 $ 913,317

2. The Sponsor Shall:

a. Pay all costs, perform all labor, and supply all material, except as described in the Engineers Estimate attached
as EXHIBIT B.

b. Provide a representative from its organization who shall serve as the single point of contact for the
Department.

c. Establish and maintain a resolution by which the Sponsor agrees to establish an airport maintenance program
and appoint an individual to be responsible for management of the program.

d. Initiate engineering, survey, and all other design activities, inspect Project construction and, coordinate all
meetings.

e. Be responsible for all design and pre-construction activities.

f. Initiate and cause to be prepared all necessary documents including plans, specifications, estimates (PS&E),
and reports for this Project.

g. Assure that all design and PS&E are performed under the direct supervision of a Registered New Mexico
Professional Engineer.

h. Design the Project in accordance with State and Federal guidelines and/or advisory circulars, hereby
incorporated into this Agreement. Construction projects will be accomplished in accordance with the
Federal Aviation Administration's Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports (Advisory Circular
150/5370-10, current edition).



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

i. Notify the Department when the plans and specifications are sufficiently complete for review.

J- Make no changes in design or scope of work without documented approval of the Department.

k. Advertise for and contract for the construction of the Project in accordance with federal and state laws or local
ordinances.

. Require the Engineer to prepare a final detailed estimate of the work, indicating the bid items, the quantity in
each item, the unit bid price and cost of the items based on low acceptable bid prices. Progress estimates shall
be submitted to the Department in acceptable form so that details of quantities allowed on various items of

work shall be shown on each progress payment.

m. The Sponsor shall submit to the Department one complete set of plans and specifications which incorporate all
comments and recommendations received during pre-bid activities and which have been fully executed by all
involved parties.

n. The Sponsor shall take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to recover State funds spent in violation of
state laws and rules. The Sponsor shall return any recovered state funds to the Department. It shall furnish to
the Department, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the determination of the amount of the
state's share of any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or the efforts taken to recover such funds. All settlements

or other final dispositions by the Sponsor, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such state funds shall
be approved in advance by the Department.

0. The Sponsor shall, upon reasonable notice, allow the Department the right to inspect the Project for the
purposes of determining if it is being constructed in a good and workmanlike manner, and if the approved
plans and specifications are being complied with satisfactorily. If an inspection discloses a failure to

substantially meet such requirements and standards the Department may terminate payment or payments until a
mutually satisfactory remedy is reached.

3. The Department Shall:
a. Assign a contact person for this project.
b. Provide timely reviews of all submittals of scopes, plans, specifications, investigations or other documents.
c. The Department shall not provide an extensive check of any plans submitted by the Sponsor. The

Department's concurrence of the Project plans does not relieve the Sponsor or its Consultant of their
responsibility for errors and omissions.

4. Both Parties Agree:
a. The allowable costs of this Project shall not include costs determined by the Department to be ineligible for
consideration under the Aviation Act.
b. The expenditure of any State money is subject to approval by the Department.

c. Funds granted under the Local Governments Road Fund, NMSA 1978 Section 67-3-28.2, shall not be used to
administer this Project or used to meet the local match.

5. Method of Payment - Reimbursement.

The Department shall reimburse the Sponsor in accordance with the terms of this agreement. Claims for reimbursement
shall be completed on form A-1159, Request for Reimbursement. Each request for reimbursement shall contain proof of
payment for valid expenditures for services rendered by a third party or items of tangible property received by the Sponsor
for the implementation of the Project. The Department reserves the right to withhold reimbursement on requests that are
incorrect and/or incomplete. The Final reimbursement request must be received no later than thirty (30) days after
completion of the project or the expiration of this Agreement.

The Sponsor shall not be reimbursed for any costs incurred prior to the full execution of the Agreement, after the
expiration of the Agreement or in excess of the maximum dollar amount of the agreement unless the maximum dollar

amount is duly amended prior to incurring the service or deliverable. Any unexpended portion of funds subject to this
Agreement shall revert to the State Aviation Fund.

6. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements. The Sponsor shall maintain all records and
documents relative to the Project for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of said Project. The Sponsor shall
furnish the Department or State Auditor, upon demand, all records which support the terms of this Agreement.

3



7 Term
DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C . , . . .
1Ne Agreement pecomes errectuve upon signatures ot an parties. The Agreement's effective date is the date opposite of the

NMDOT Cabinet Secretary or Designee's signature on the signature page. This agreement shall expire two (2) years from
the effective date, unless terminated pursuant to Sections 8 and 17, below.

8. Termination for Cause.

The Department has the option to terminate this Agreement if the Sponsor fails to comply with any provision of this
Agreement. A written notice of termination shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of termination
and shall identify all of the Sponsor's breaches on which the termination is based.

The Department may provide the Sponsor a reasonable opportunity to correct the breach. If within ten (10) days after
receipt of a written notice of termination, the Sponsor has not corrected the breach or, in the case of a breach which cannot
be corrected in ten (10) days, the Sponsor has not begun and proceeded in good faith to correct the breach, the Department
may declare the Sponsor in default and terminate the Agreement. The Department shall retain any and all other remedies
available to it under the law.

By such termination neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform for the
work rendered prior to the date of termination. However, neither party shall have any obligation to perform services or
make payment for services rendered after such date of termination.

9. Disposition of Property.
a. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Sponsor shall account for any remaining property, materials
or equipment belonging to the Department and dispose of them as directed by the Department.
b. Any equipment, materials or supplies procured under this Agreement shall be used solely for aviation
purposes maintained according to the manufacturers guidelines and stored at the airport.

10. Representations and Certification.
The Sponsor, by signing this Agreement, represents and certifies the following:

a. Legal Authority - The Sponsor has the legal power and authority to: (1) do all things necessary in order to
undertake and carry out the Project in conformity with the provisions stated in the New Mexico Aviation Act
and Rules and Regulations pursuant thereto; (2) accept, receive and disburse grant funds from the State of New

Mexico in aid of the Project; and (3) carry out all provisions stated in this Aviation Grant Agreement.

b. Defaults - The Sponsor is not in default on any obligation to the State of New Mexico relative to the
development, operation or maintenance of any airport or aviation project.

c. Possible Disabilities - The Sponsor states, by execution of this Agreement, there are no facts or circumstance
(including the existence of effective or proposed leases, use agreements, or other legal instruments affecting use
of the airport or the existence of pending litigation or other legal proceedings) which in reasonable probability
might make it impossible for the Sponsor to carry out and complete the Project.

d. Land - The Sponsor holds the property interest in the areas of land which are to be developed or used as part of
or in connection with the Project and is identified in a current Airport Property Map. The Sponsor further
certifies that the aforementioned is based on a title examination by a qualified attorney or title company who has
determined that the Sponsor holds the stated property interests.

11. Assurances.
The Sponsor, by signing this Agreement, covenants and agrees to the following Assurances:
a. That it will operate the airport for the use and benefit of the public on fair and reasonable terms and without
unjust discrimination.
b. That it will keep the airport open to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical use without discrimination
between such types, kinds, and classes. The Sponsor shall establish fair, equal and not unjustly discriminatory
conditions to be met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation.



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

c. Neither it nor any person or organization occupying space at the airport will discriminate against any person
or class of persons by reason of race, color, creed, or national origin in the use of the facility and, further that
any person, firm or corporation rendering service to the public on the airport will do so on a fair, equal and
not unjustly discriminatory basis.

d. Operate and maintain in a safe and serviceable condition the airport and all facilities which are necessary to
serve the aeronautical users and will not permit any activity which would interfere with its use for airport
purposes.

e. By acquisition of land interest, acquisition of easements, airspace zoning, or other accepted means, protect the
runway approaches and the airspace in the immediate vicinity of the airport from the construction, alteration,
erection or growth of any structure which would interfere with the use or operation of the airport.

f. Comply with the New Mexico Aviation Act and associated provisions, NMSA 1978 Sections 64-1-1 to 64-5-4
and the New Mexico Municipal Airport Law, NMSA 1978 Sections 3-39-1 et seq.

g. That it shall not award the contract nor give bidding documents to any contractor who is subject to suspension
or debarment by the U.S. Department of Transportation or the Department at the time of the bidding or award
of the contract. Violation of this provision shall void this Agreement.

12. Third Party Beneficiaries.

It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member thereof a
third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s),
bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant
to the provisions of this Agreement.

13. New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

As between the Department and the Sponsor, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other
party's acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is
subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Section 41-4-1, et seq. This
paragraph is intended only to define the liabilities between the parties and it is not intended to modify, in any way, the
parties' liabilities as governed by common law or the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

14. Scope of Agreement.

This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties concerning the subject
matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior
Agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless
embodied in this Agreement.

15. Terms of this Agreement.
The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations shall conform with and do not
contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

16. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of
the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with all such laws and rules and
regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in
the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be
excluded from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement. If the
parties are found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this Agreement, the parties agree to
take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

17. Appropriations and Authorizations of State and Federal Funds.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being made by the governing
board of the Sponsor, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved,
for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Sponsor, Legislature
or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement shall terminate upon written notice
being given by one party to the other. The Department and the Sponsor are expressly not committed to expenditure of any
funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and approved for expenditure.

18. Severability.
In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

19. Applicable Law.
The Laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice of law provisions.

Venue shall be proper only in a New Mexico court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with NMSA 1978, Section
38-3-1(Q).

20. Principal Contacts and Notices.
The principal contacts for this Agreement are listed below. Except as otherwise specified, all notices shall be in writing
(including notice by facsimile or E-mail) and shall be given to the principal contacts listed below.

Address: New Mexico Department of Transportation - Aviation Division
3501 Access Rd C.
Albuquerque, NM 87106

General Office: (505) 795-1401

Fax: (505) 244-1790

E-mail: Aviation.Division@dot.nm.gov

Name MONTE GORE

Title COUNTY MANAGER

Sponsor COLFAX, COUNTY OF

Address PO BOX 98

City RATON NM  Zip Code 87740
Office Phone Fax

E-Mail mgore@co.colfax.nm.us

21. Amendment.
This Agreement shall not be altered, modified, or amended except by an instrument in writing and executed by the parties.



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite of that party's signature.

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DocuSigned by:

[ 12/2
Ficky Strma Date: 04/12/24

:::::::::::::::

Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Recommended by:

DocuSigned by:
11/2
By: ELA/VO M Date: 04/11/24

CRB75C3211D34C0.

Aviation Division Director
or Designee

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Office of General Counsel

DocuSigned by:

29%7%L4 3/22/2024

By: CECAR250488 Date:

Assistant General Counsel
SPONSOR

. Si Trujillo

Print Name:

DocuSigned by:

St Trwnlle 04/10/24

By: R47q|:m(‘71466 Date:

. Chairman of Colfax County Commission
Title:




DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

EXHIBIT A

ANGEL FIRE, NM ANGEL FIRE AIRPORT (AXX) SITE NO. 14534.A
EAGLE NEST
CIMARRON R.
]
]
| 4119’ GROUND
: l 2576’
AIRPORT 2y PLASI
SITE i
36'25'N
10517'W Fyasi
\N
ANGEL FIRE \
I +40°
)' RIDGE
4
]
]
]
2l
x
=1
>~
T
5]
[9p)
\<'(’l
]
8|
x|
.|
]
[0)]
COI
|
REMARKS: J i
1. QUAD. — 7.5 MIN. PALO FLECHADO PASS. r I'
2. FULL LENGTH 3’ DRAINAGE DITCH —_EQUP. E .
BETWEEN T/W AND R/W. !
i
]
]
]
|
- ]
[=2) ]
o
g ||
[} 35 ]
R : 1| ELEV
S & 8382’
S 0
= ]
5 0 1000’ 2000’ | FENCE
&




DocuSign Envelope ID: DDA72A3C-BB88-48C1-BBC5-FA2868D5100C

EXHIBIT B

LOCATION AXX- ANGEL FIRE MUNICPAL AIRPORT
PROJECT |AXX-24-03 - AIRFIELD LIGHTING REHAB, BEACON REPLACEMENT, LAND ACQUISITION
OTHER TOTAL
ITEM ITEM OF WORK AND DESCRIPTION STATE SPONSOR FUNDS ESTIMATED
NO. FUNDS FUNDS (FAA) COSTS
1 LAND ACQUISITION $ - % -1 % -1 % -
CONSTRUCTION $ 68,166 | $ 75741 $ 681,660 [ $ 757,400
ENGINEERING $ 6,609 | $ 734 | $ 66,087 | $ 73,430
ADMINISTRATIVE (DBE) $ -l 8 -l % -1 % -
INSPECTION $ 3,717 |1 $ 413 | $ 37,170 [ $ 41,300
TESTING $ 3,708 | $ 412 | $ 37,079 | $ 41,199
EQUIPMENT (SPECIFY) $ -1 $ -l % -
OTHER (PLANNING) $ -l 8 -l % -1 % -
$ 82,200 | $ 9,133 | $ 821,984 $ 913,317
PROJECT COST $ 82,200 | $ 9,133 | $ 821,984 $ 913,317
9.00% 1.00% 90.00%




Colfax County, New Mexico

Investment Policy

Introduction and Statement Policy

This Investment Policy (“The Policy”) shall apply to the cash balance of Colfax County,
including but not limited to cash balance in the following funds:

General Fund Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds Enterprise Funds
Debt Service Funds Agency Funds

The Policy is designed to govern all investment transactions allowed under current New
Mexico law for the prudent investment of cash balances, and to maximize the efficiency of the
County’s cash management system. The goal of the policy is to “ . . protect public funds by
investing such funds in a manner which provides for safety of principal and adequate liquidity
while maximizing investmentincome .. ”

The primary objectives, in priority order, of the County’s investment activities shall be:

SAFETY: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the County shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation
of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that
potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder

of the portfolio.

LIQUIDITY: The County’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the
County to meet all operating requirements, which might be reasonably anticipated. This objective
will be achieved by laddering of investments according to the cash flow of the county. The county
will have a procedure in place to alert the investment officer of any unanticipated expenditures

and unanticipated revenues.

YIELD: The County’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining
at least a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account
the County’s investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

The purpose of this investment policy is that the County will follow the New Mexico State
Statues as outlined in the Investment Policy written by the County Treasurer and approved by the
County Commission acting as the Board of Finance. The County Treasurer will prepare and
distribute investment Treasure’s report requested by the County Commission.



Delegation of Authority and Duties:

Authority of the Board of County Commissioners: The Board of County Commissioners acting
in its capacity as a County Board of Finance pursuant to 6-10-8, NMSA 1978, shall have authority
to set policy for management of all County investments and ensure that such Policy is carried out.

Authority of the County Treasurer: The County Treasurer has authority over the investment of
public funds as outlined in the Policy and is hereby designated as the County’s Investment Officer.
The Investment Officer shall be responsible for all investment transactions and shall implement
and maintain the system of controls outlined in the Policy in order to regulate investment
activities.

Duties of the County Treasurer: Subject to approval from the Commission, the County Treasurer
shall establish and appoint an Investment Committee whose membership should include the
County Treasurer, County Manager (or his/her designee), a County Commissioner, Chief Deputy
Treasurer and two public members from the districts except the district where the appointed
County Commissioner in this Committee serves. The County Treasurer shall serve as Chairman
of the Investment Committee.

Duties of the Investment Committee: The Investment Committee shall meet at least semi-
annually to formulate and make recommendations to the County Board of Commissioners
regarding any cash management or investment matters. The Investment Committee shall
recommend to the County Board of Commissioners the policies and procedures for investment of
Excess Funds.

Duties of the Investment Officer:

-
.

Implementing this Investment Policy.

2. Thetimely deposit and safekeeping of all public moneys of the county.

3. Chair Investment Committee, set agenda and participate in the development,
preparation, and presentation of policy recommendations to the Board of
Commissioners.

4. Daily management of the investment of County’s cash balances (the “Investment
Portfolio”) including the responsibility for the placing of specific investment with
banks, savings and loan associations, and others in accordance with this policy.

5. Developing and maintaining an ongoing cash management program to estimate cash
receipts (revenues) and cash disbursements (expenditures).

6. Preparation of monthly Investment Portfolio reports which shall include but not be

limited to the following:



a. Aschedule of investments by type, including with whom invested (name of
bank, savings and loan or brokerage firm), purchase date, cost value at par,
interest rate, maturity date and yielding to maturity.

. Schedule of investments made since previous report.

c. Average maturity and yielding to maturity for the Investment Portfolio.

d. Schedule of securities pledged as collateral by each financial institution as
required under this Policy and with comments as to the adequacy of such
pledged securities.

e. Schedule identifying when, and if, excess funds existed during reporting period
and how investment of such funds were handled.

f.  Percentage of County Funds held by each local financial institution in relation
to the allocation formula.

g. Comment on any current or anticipated issues or topics regarding any
investment matters.

7. Maintaining a system of internal controls, which shall be reviewed by the County
Board of Commissioners and independent auditors on an annual basis. The
Investment Officer shall review the system of controls periodically to ensure
compliance and effectiveness.

8. Upon request of any member of the Investment Committee or the County Board of
Commissioners, the Investment Officer shall call a special meeting.

Cash Management

The County Board of Commissioners and the Treasurer’s Office shall jointly prepare and
maintain an ongoing cash management program. This program will involve the preparation of a
regular report that includes projections for cash receipts (revenues), cash disbursement
(expenditures) and interest earned or estimated to be earned on overnight investments. The
County Board of Commissioners shall notify the County Treasurer on a regular basis of county
expenditures and of any large expenditures anticipated so that the cash liquidity can be planned
according to the cash management report and County expenditures. The County Treasurer shall
take into consideration these projected cash needs of the County when setting investment

maturity dates.

Eligible Investment Instruments

Cash balances shall be invested in accordance with Section 6-10-36 NMSA, 1978, and
shall be equitably distributed among all banks and savings and loan associations, having their
main or manned branch offices within the County boundaries, as directed by Section 6-10-36
NMSA, 197 Paragraph C.

Funds that are declared “excess” due to the inability or unwillingness of a local financial
institution to accept its Pro-rata share of deposits may be invested investments approved under
this policy. The County will diversify use of investment instruments to avoid incurring



unreasonable risk inherent in over investing in specific instruments, individual financial
institutions or maturities. Approved investments are:

-

Certificates of Deposit, to be collateralized only by and/or Municipal Bonds.

2. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds and Notes.

3. Bonds or negotiable securities of the State of New Mexico or any County, Municipality
or School District, or

4. The Local Government Investment Pool pursuant to Section 6-10-10.1, NMSA 1978.

Equities and corporate debt instruments are specifically prohibited.
Scheduling of Investment Maturities

Investment maturities for cash balances shall be scheduled to coincide with projected
cash flow needs, taking into account expenditures (payroll, debt-retirement payments, Capital
Improvements Program disbursements) as well as considering anticipated revenue (property
taxes, payment in lieu of taxes, etc.) utilizing the Cash Management program developed by the
Investment Officer.

Safekeeping and Collateralization

No public funds to be invested in negotiable securities or loans to financial institutions
fully secured by negotiable securities at current market value shall be paid out unless there is a
simultaneous transfer of securities, either by physical delivery or in the case of uncertificated
securities, by appropriate book entry on the books of the issuer to the purchaser or to a reputable
third-party safekeeping financial institutions acting as agent of trustee for the purchaser, which
agent or trustee shall furnish timely confirmation to the purchaser. (See NMSA 1978, Section 6-
10-10 (H)). The Investment Officer will prepare the safekeeping report as is requested.

In an effort to safeguard against the failure of financial institutions the following criteria shall apply
to all investments:

ALL collateral shall be based on 100% collateralization.

Prudence

The Standard of Prudence to be used by the County Board of Commissioners and
Investment Officer shall be the “Prudent Person Rule”. This concept discourages speculative
transactions and attaches primary significance to the preservation of capital, and secondary
importance to the generation of income and capital gains. The County’s Investment Portfolio shall
be managed in this context; therefore, the investment Officer, acting in accordance with written
procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an
individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations
are reported on a timely basis and appropriate action is taken to control adverse development.



Prudence to be applied in accordance with Section 6-10-8 NMSA, 1978 which sates:
Investments shall be with judgment and care — under circumstances then prevailing — which
persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs
not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as
the provable income to be derived.

Ethics and Conflict of Interest

Then Investment Officer and members of the County Board of Commissioners and
Investment Committee shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with
proper execution of the investment program, or which could affect or impair their ability to make
impartial investment decisions. (See Section 6-10-53 NMSA, 1978). County Investment officials
shall disclose to the County any financial interest or personal investment in financial institutions
that could be related to or affect the performance of the County’s Investment Portfolio or that
might be constructed as a conflict of interest. Disclosure statements shall be filed annually with
the County Clerk, county Treasurer and County Manager. Such investment officials shall act
responsibly to separate their personal banking and investment activities from those of the County,
particularly with regard to the time of securities purchases and sales.

Revisions of the investment Policy

The board of Commissioners may recommend any revisions in this Policy that they believe
would be beneficial to the County. It shall be the obligation of the Investment Committee to bring
such amendments to the Board of Commissioners and obtain the approval of their majority
before such changes and amendments take effect.

In the event the State Statutes are legally changed to allow other securities as appropriate
for investment by the County then this Policy may be amended to include those securities as
appropriate with the approval of the Board of Commissioners.

Approved in open meeting 23 April 2024

COLFAX COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Si Trujillo, CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

Mary Lou Kern, VICE-CHAIR
Rayetta M. Trujillo, CLERK OF THE BOARD

Bret Wier, Member



DBoard. g/%&mmnm

P.O. Box 1498 @ Raton, New Mexico 87740
Ph. (575) 445-9661 @ Fax. (575) 445-2902
www.co.colfax.nm.us

QAL SRR e ek e R e

Connty Cammissiancrs Colfax County Building Tenant Notification Policy

Si Trujillo
Chairman

?92‘3“&3’.”28 8973740 Inspections and Landlord's Right to Enter. During the term and any renewal of
o lease on a County owned building to a 3rd party. The Landlord (Colfax

Q‘IZZ‘CIII:T“'E:;“ County) and its agents may enter the premises to make inspections or repairs.
Raton, NM 87740 Except where the Landlord or its agents consider it an emergency or otherwise
S specified in the lease agreement, the Landlord (Colfax County) will provide

s i the Tenant with written notice 24 hours prior to entering.
ember

P.O. Box 664

Angel Fire, NM 87710
(505) 652-0039

Monte K. Gore 3 % 3 rd A
Colfax County Manager Approved in open meeting this 23" day of April 2024.
230 North 3rd Street

Raton, NM 87740
(575) 445-9661

Elected Officials
COLFAX COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Lydia M. Garcia
County Treasurer
(575) 445-3171

Kristi E. Graham

County Assessor Si Truj i]lO, CHAIRMAN

(575) 445-2314

Royal Quint
Probate Judge Mary Lou Kern, VICE-CHAIR

(575) 445-9565

Bret Wier, MEMBER

ATTEST:

Rayetta M. Trujillo, CLERK OF THE BOARD



Pay App #1

CONTRACTOR’S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

ﬂuﬂﬂ Illlnn
GRAVEL

G THE

3 G

Ay eEGASR

R05- 4755051

CONTRACTOR: Rocky Road Grave! & Well Drilling, LLC
PROJECT NAME: Chicorica Creek Low Water Crossing
PROJECT Number: RFB-2023-06

PAYMENT APPLICATION NO: 1 APPLICATION DATE: 03/25/24
PERIOD FROM: 03/01/24 TO: 03/25/24

=%

ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM 177,200.00

NET CHANGE BY APPROVED CHANGE ORDER(S) $ 0

1

ADJUSTED CONTRACT SUM TO DATE 177,200.00

VALUE OF ORIGINAL WORK COMPLETE __100Q_ % TO DATE $ 177,200.00

VALUE OF CHANGE ORDER(S) COMPLETE _____ % TO DATE $0
| TOTAL COMPLETE & STORED TO DATE $ 177,200.00
New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax @8.2583% $ 14,633.71
$ 191,833.71

PAYMENT APPLICATION AMOUNT DUE

The undersigned contractor certifies that to the best of the contractor's knowledge, information, and belief, the work and
materials covered by this application for payment have been completed in accordance with the contract documents, and that
payment application amount shown herein is now due.

| hereby certify that | have performed work in accordance with our contract for this project and installed or stored materials
totaling the above referenced amount and all tier-subs, all material vendors and labor performed in line with the contract have
been paig _;g\hrough this phase of construction.

CONJRACTQR: Rocle-Road Gravel & Well Drifling, LLC

By: Dater_ 03/25/24

l\‘/Tathews, Owner

A
OREN

ror Colfax County Qffice Use Only:

Percentage of Completion Approved __ —— — .. Date

Amount Paid to Date $__ __ . Balance Due $_ — _

352 County Road A-6/PO Box 1405
Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701
Phone: (505) 425-6051 ¢ Fax: {505) 454-9877



SOIL DENSITY AND MOISTURE REPORT Billingsley Engineering, Inc.

P.C. Box 1120 - 801 6th St.

Client; Rocky Road Gravel Prod. Las Vegas, NM 87701
Project Name:  Contractor QC Blllingsley Engineering, Inc.
Authorized By:  Sam Ramirez
Affiiation:  Rocky Road Gravel Products Fleld Report No.:  24--082-F
Report Date:  3/25/2024
Tesied By:  Leroy Gonzales Reviewed By P.E.:  Rod Blllingsley
Test Date:  March 13, 2024 Date Reviewed:  3/25/2024
Gauge: Troxler 3440, $/N:20074 Callbration Date: 01/19/24 Test Method: T-310
Wet bry DT Depth
Density Density Molsture| M% % %C or | Compactlon Moisture Procfor | Std. Count Std. Count
Test No. Test Location (lbffta) [ibift%) % OK? Compact. OK? BS* Spec. Spec. Used Density:  Moisture:

Raton Bridge, 3' South from Edge of
D1 Roadway, 20' West from Center of 134.0 118.5 13 N 99 s 3] o5% min  12% - 16% P
Pipe, Finish Grade for Subgrade

1734 551

)
w

Raton Bridge, 5 North from Edgs of
D2 Roadway, 40' West from Center of 134.0 119.1 13 v 99 v 6 85% min 12% —16% P-3 1734 551

Plpe, Finish Grade for Subgrade

Raton Bridge, 120’ East from
D3 beginning of Base-Course Edge, 1437 1384 6 v 100 v 6 96% min none P-1 1736 549
Center-Line, For Roadway

* B5 - Backscatter
DT - Diract Transmisslon
N/A - Not Applicable

Refarenced Proctors:

Optimum BE Lah Log
Max Density Maolsture Reference  No. for this
Mark Location Material (ibsiit’) {%) Classification Standard: Proctor:
CAZ:
P-1 Stookpile at Crusher Base Course 135.4 5.8 A2-4 T-480D  LL201-14
P-3 Stack Pile Or-Sight Subgrade 120 12 AB T-180 A 24-055-L

REMARKS:
The results relate only to the items inspected or tested. This report shall not be repraduced, excapt in full, without prior written approval from the testing agency.

Reports to:
Oren Mathews rackyroad@desertgate.com Respectfully Submitted,
Rocky Road Offlce rackyroadshopR4@gmail.com

Rocky Road Offloe 2 rrgravelB84@gamail.com % ZE) mg éqb

Page 1of 1 ﬂﬁziﬂmm‘w v23.12.15



JOSEPH M.MAESTAS, P.E.

RICKY A. BEJARANO, CPA, CGMA
STATE AUDITOR

DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR

State of New Mexico
Office of the State Auditor

CONSTITUENT SERVICES
(505) 476-3821

April 08, 2024

Joana Apodaca

Financial Specialist
Colfax County
japodaca@co.colfax.nm.us

Dear Joana Apodaca,

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 12-6-3 and -14, and any applicable provisions of the Audit Rule, the Office of the State Auditor (OSA) hereby
approves the request and contract for Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP (the “IPA”) to conduct the Fiscal Year 2024 annual audit or agreed-upon
procedures engagement for Colfax County (the “Agency™). This approval is contingent upon the following;:

» The IPA and the Agency must use the form of contract from the OSA-Connect online portal, with no changes. If any changes are required, a
contract amendment will need to be completed and submitted in OSA-Connect for approval.

¢ The contract price and all other terms of the contract must be identical to the information submitted through the OSA-Connect portal.

¢ If applicable, the Agency will submit the contract for any additional required approvals from an oversight authority, including any approvals by
the Public Education Department or Higher Education Department required by NMSA 1978, Section 12-6-14.

¢ If applicable, the Agency will submit to the General Services Division Contracts Review Bureau the required number of signed contracts, a
copy of this letter and any other required documentation.

¢ Once you have received all signatures, please login to OSA-Connect and upload your fully executed contract. If you do not upload your fully
executed contract, your report release will be delayed.

[f any of these conditions is not satisfied, this approval will be void, and the Agency will be required to commence the contracting process again with
the submission of new information through the OSA-Connect portal.

If you have any questions, please contact the OSA at (505) 476-3800.

Sincerely,

Office of The State Auditon

2540 Camino Edward Ortiz, Suite A, Santa Fe. New Mexico 87507
Phone (505) 476-3800 * Fax (505) 827-3512
www.osanm.org * 1-866-OSA-FRAUD



Contract No.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
AUDIT CONTRACT

Colfax County
hereinafter referred to as the "Agency," and

Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP

hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor," agree:

As required by the Audit Rule, Section 2.2.2.1 NMAC ef seq., Contractor agrees to, and shall, inform the Agency of any restriction placed
on Contractor by the Office of the State Auditor pursuant to Section 2.2.2.8 NMAC, and whether the Contractor is eligible to enter into
this Contract despite the restriction.

1. SCOPE OF WORK (Include in Paragraph 25 any expansion of scope)

A. The Contractor shall conduct a financial and compliance audit of the Agency for Fiscal Year 2024 in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, Government Auditing Standards, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, the Audit Act, Sections 12-6-1 through 12-6-15, NMSA 1978, and the Audit
Rule ( Section 2.2.2.1 NMAC et seq.).

2. DELIVERY AND REPRODUCTION

A. In order to meet the delivery terms of this Contract, the Contractor shall deliver the documents required by Section 2.2.2.9 NMAC to the
State Auditor on or before the deadline set forth for the Agency in Section 2.2.2.9 NMAC.

B. Reports delivered electronically by 5:00 p.m. of the Agency's due date will be considered received by the due date for purposes of
Section 2.2.2.9 NMAC. Unfinished or excessively deficient reports will not satisfy this requirement; such reports will be rejected and
returned to the Contractor and the State Auditor may take action in accordance with Section 2.2.2.13 NMAC. If the State Auditor does
not receive copies of the management representation letter and the completed Report Review Guide with the audit report or prior to
delivery of the audit report, the State Auditor will not consider the report submitted to the State Auditor.

C. As soon as the Contractor becomes aware that circumstances exist that will make the Agency's audit report late, the Contractor shall
immediately provide written notification of the situation to the State Auditor in accordance with Section 2.2.2.9 NMAC.

D. Pursuant to Section 2.2.2.10 NMAC, the Contractor shall prepare a written and dated engagement letter that identifies the specific
responsibilities of the Contractor and the Agency.

E. After its review of the audit report pursuant to Section 2.2.2.13 NMAC, the State Auditor shall authorize the Contractor to print and
submit the final audit report. Within five business days after the date of the authorization to print and submit the final audit report, the
Contractor shall provide the State Auditor an electronic version of the audit report, in PDF format, and the electronic copy of the Excel
version of the Summary of Findings Form, and any other required schedule (if applicable). After the State Auditor officially releases the
audit report by issuance of a release letter, the Contractor shall deliver 2 copies of the audit report to the Agency. The Agency or
Contractor shall ensure that every member of the Agency's governing authority shall receive a copy of the report.

3. COMPENSATION

A. The total amount payable by the Agency to the Contractor under this Contract shall not exceed $50,701.00 including applicable gross
receipts tax.

B. Contractor agrees not to, and shall not, perform any services in furtherance of this Contract prior to approval by the State Auditor.
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it will not be entitled to payment or compensation for any services performed by Contractor
pursuant to this Contract prior to approval by the State Auditor.

C. Total Compensation will consist of the following:

SERVICES AMOUNTS |




(1) Financial statement audit $39,000.00
(2) Federal single audit $4.000.00
(3) Financial statement preparation $4,000.00
(4) Other nonaudit services, such as depreciation schedule updates $0.00
(5) Other (i.e., component units, specifically identified) $0.00

Gross Receipts Tax = $3,701.00

Total Compensation = $50,701.00 including applicable gross receipts tax

D. The Agency shall pay the Contractor the New Mexico gross receipts tax levied on the amounts payable under this Contract and invoiced
by the Contractor. Payment is subject to availability of funds pursuant to the Appropriations Paragraph set forth below.

E. The State Auditor may authorize progress payments to the Contractor by the Agency; pursuant to Section 2.2.2.8(M)(3) NMAC;
provided that the authorization is based upon evidence of the percentage of audit work completed as of the date of the request for partial
payment. If requested by the State Auditor, the Agency shall provide a copy of the progress billings. Final payment for services rendered
by the Contractor shall not be made until a determination and written finding is made by the State Auditor in the release letter that the
audit has been made in a competent manner in accordance with the provisions of this Contract and applicable rules of the State Auditor.

4. TERM. Unless terminated pursuant to Paragraphs 5 or 19, this Contract shall terminate one calendar year after the latest date on which it is
signed.

5. TERMINATION, BREACH AND REMEDIES

A. This Contract may be terminated:

1. By either party without cause, upon written notice delivered to the other party and the State Auditor at least ten (10) days prior to
the intended date of termination.

2. By either party, immediately upon written notice delivered to the other party and the State Auditor, if a material breach of any of
the terms of this Contract occurs. Unjustified failure to deliver the report in accordance with Paragraph 2 shall constitute a material
breach of this Contract.

3. By the Agency pursuant to Paragraph 19, immediately upon written notice to the Contractor and the State Auditor.

4. By the State Auditor, immediately upon written notice to the Contractor and the Agency after determining that the audit has been
unduly delayed, or for any other reason.

B. By termination, neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of
termination. If the Agency or the State Auditor terminates this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for work
performed prior to termination in the amount of earned, but not yet paid, progress payments, if any, that the State Auditor has authorized
to the extent required by Paragraph 3(E). If the Contractor terminates this Contract for any reason other than Agency's breach of this

Contract, the Contractor shall repay to the Agency the full amount of any progress payments for work performed under the terms of this
Contract.

C. Pursuant to Section 2.2.2.8 NMAC, the State Auditor may disqualify the Contractor from eligibility to contract for audit services with the
State of New Mexico if the Contractor knowingly makes false statements, false assurances or false disclosures under this Contract. The

State Auditor on behalf of the Agency or the Agency may bring a civil action for damages or any other relief against a Contractor for a
material breach of this Contract.

D. THE REMEDIES HEREIN ARE NOT EXCLUSIVE, AND NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 5 WAIVES OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS
AND REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES.

6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR

The Contractor and its agents and employees are independent contractors performing professional services for the Agency and are not
employees of the Agency. The Contractor and its agents and employees shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of state
vehicles or any other benefits afforded to employees of the Agency as a result of this Contract. The Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the
State of New Mexico to any obligation not assumed under this Contract unless the Contractor has express written authority to do so, and then
only within the strict limits of that authority.

7. ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Contract or assign any claims for money due or to become due under this
Contract.



8.

10.

11.

12.

14.

16.

17.

SUBCONTRACTING

The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under this Contract without the prior written approval of the
Agency and the State Auditor. An agreement between the Contractor and a subcontractor to subcontract any portion of the services under this
Contract shall be completed on a form prescribed by the State Auditor. The agreement shall be an amendment to this Contract and shall specify
the portion of the audit services to be performed by the subcontractor, how the responsibility for the audit will be shared between the
Contractor and the subcontractor, the party responsible for signing the audit report and the method by which the subcontractor will be paid.
Pursuant to Section 2.2.2.8 NMAC, the Contractor may subcontract only with independent public accounting firms that are on the State
Auditor's List of Approved Firms, and that are not otherwise restricted by the State Auditor from entering into such a contract.

.RECORDS

The Contractor shall maintain detailed time records that indicate the date, time, and nature of services rendered during the term of this

Contract. The Contractor shall retain the records for a period of at least five (5) years after the date of final payment under this contract. The
records shall be subject to inspection by the Agency and the State Auditor. The Agency and the State Auditor shall have the right to audit
billings both before and after payment. Payment under this Contract shall not foreclose the right of the Agency or the State Auditor on behalf of
the Agency to recover excessive or illegal payments.

RELEASE
The Contractor, upon receiving final payment of the amounts due under the Contract, releases the State Auditor, the Agency, their respective

officers and employees and the State of New Mexico from all liabilities, claims and obligations whatsoever arising from or under this Contract.
This paragraph does not release the Contractor from any liabilities, claims or obligations whatsoever arising from or under this Contract.

CONFIDENTIALITY

All information provided to or developed by the Contractor from any source whatsoever in the performance of this Contract shall be kept
confidential and shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor, except in accordance with this Contract or
<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>